
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

AGENDA  
HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

 
Date: Thursday, 14 July 2022 
  
Time: 6.00 pm 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 
Members:  
Councillor Mrs K Mandry (Chairman) 

 
Councillor S Ingram (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors R Bird 

F Birkett 

D G Foot 

Mrs J Kelly 

Mrs K K Trott 

 
Deputies: Ms C Bainbridge 

Ms S Pankhurst 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 10) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Housing Scrutiny Panel meeting 
held on 03 February 2022. 
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest and Disclosures of Advice or Directions  

 To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing 
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct and disclosures of advice or directions 
received from Group Leaders or Political Groups, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 

5. Deputations  

 To receive any deputations of which notice has been lodged.  
 

6. Executive Business (Pages 11 - 12) 

 To consider any item of business dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting 
of the Panel that falls under the remit of the Housing Portfolio.  This will include any 
decisions taken by the Executive Member during the same time period.  
 

(1) Draft Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy - Adoption (Pages 13 - 
14) 

(2) Assheton Court Redevelopment (Pages 15 - 16) 

7. Roles and Functions of the Housing Scrutiny Panel (Pages 17 - 18) 

 The Panel will receive a presentation which will provide an overview for new 
members on the role and functions of the Housing Scrutiny Panel. 
 

8. Affordable Housing Update (Pages 19 - 20) 

 To receive a presentation by the Head of Housing Delivery which updates members 
on progress with Fareham Housing Sites and other relevant strategic housing 
matters. 
 

9. Homelessness Funding Bids - Update (Pages 21 - 26) 

 To consider a report by the Head of Housing and Benefits which will provide the 
Panel with an update in respect of recent Homelessness Funding Bids. 
 

10. Housing Scrutiny Panel Priorities  

 To provide an opportunity for Members to consider the scrutiny priorities for the 
Housing Panel.  
 

Page 2



 

 

 
P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
Civic Offices 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
05 July 2022 

 
 
 

For further information please contact: 
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 

Tel:01329 236100 
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk 

Page 3

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/
tel:01329
mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk




 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Minutes of the 
Housing Scrutiny Panel 

 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 
Date: Thursday, 3 February 2022 
  
Venue: Collingwood Room - Civic Offices 

 
 

PRESENT:  

Councillor Mrs K Mandry (Chairman) 
 

Councillor  (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors: S Dugan, Mrs C L A Hockley, Ms S Pankhurst, Mrs K K Trott 
and Mrs L E Clubley (deputising for N R Gregory) 
 

 
Also 
Present: 

Councillor Mrs T L Ellis 
 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Housing Scrutiny Panel  3 February 2022 
 

 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Fazackarley and 
Councillor Gregory. 
 

2. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Housing Scrutiny Panel 
held on 28 October 2021 be confirmed and signed as a correct record.  
 

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OF ADVICE OR 
DIRECTIONS  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.  
 

5. DEPUTATIONS  
 
There were no deputations made at this meeting.  
 

6. EXECUTIVE BUSINESS  
 
(1) Fareham Borough Council Shared Ownership Policy  
 
There were no comments or questions for clarification in respect of this item.  
 
(2) Fareham Housing Disposals at 12 Hartlands and development of 

land adjacent to 51 Bellfield  
 
There were no comments or questions for clarification in respect of this item.  
 
(3) Local Authority Delivery 2 (LAD2) Funding Scheme for energy 

efficiency measures to Council homes - Update  
 
There were no comments or questions for clarification in respect of this item.  
 
(4) Fareham Borough Council Interim First Homes Policy  
 
There were no questions or comments for clarification in respect of this item.  
 
(5) Conversion works at 92 Gordon Road, 1 Arundel Drive and 1A 

Arundel Drive  
 
A query was raised in respect of this item with regard to proposed use of the 
property acquired by the Council at 92 Gordon Road.  It was noted that this 
would be clarified at item 7 on the agenda which would provide an update on 
Housing delivery.  
 

7. AFFORDABLE HOUSING UPDATE  

Page 6



Housing Scrutiny Panel  3 February 2022 
 

 

 
The Panel received a presentation by the Head of Housing Delivery which 
provided members with an update on progress with Fareham Housing sites 
and other relevant strategic housing matters. A copy of the presentation slides 
is attached to these minutes as Appendix A.  
 
The Head of Housing Delivery clarified that the recently acquired property at 
Gordon Road will provide emergency accommodation for individuals/families 
who become unexpectedly homeless and who need temporary 
accommodation whilst alternative arrangements can be made. It is not 
intended to be used to house rough sleepers.  
 
The Head of Housing Delivery provided information about a review of the 
Housing Register which will shortly be complete. The review is intended to 
ensure the information held on the Housing Register is up to date.  At this 
stage it is expected to show a significant reduction (from approximately 1,000 
to 650) in households on the Register.  As a result of this there is expected to 
be a review of the Affordable Housing Strategy during 2022/23 to reflect 
updated information around need.  
 
Concerns were raised by the Panel that the rising cost of living may push 
many people into fuel poverty which could result in an increase in demand for 
Council owned accommodation due to people losing their homes.  
 
Members thanked the Head of Housing Delivery for a very interesting and 
informative presentation.  
 
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel notes the content of the 
presentation. 
 
 

8. DRAFT HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING STRATEGY - 
ADOPTION  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs T L Ellis addressed the Panel 
on this item.  
 
The Panel received a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer which 
presented the Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and 
accompanying Delivery Plan for members consideration following completion 
of a period of public consultation.  The report set out the key findings of the 
consultation and asked that the Panel consider the Strategy prior to referral to 
the Executive at its forthcoming meeting on 07 March 2022. 
 
Members raised concern that there may be an increase in homelessness and 
rough sleeping as a result of people losing their homes through fuel poverty 
and the rising cost of living.  The Head of Housing and Benefits advised that 
the Delivery Plan aims to assess data to provide an understanding of future 
needs so that a more strategic approach can be taken to ensure people in 
need ask for assistance at an early stage so that they can be signposted to 
organisations who can help.  The Panel discussed the need to ensure that 
services and assistance are well publicised and suggested that in addition to 

Page 7



Housing Scrutiny Panel  3 February 2022 
 

 

information being provided on the website, Council noticeboards and local 
community hubs could be used to raise awareness of help that is available.  
 
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel: 
 

(a) considered the Draft Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy 
attached at Appendix B to the report; 
 

(b) considered the Draft Delivery Plan attached at Appendix C to the report; 
and 

 
(c) recommends to the Executive that they adopt the Draft Homelessness 

& Rough Sleeping Strategy and Draft Delivery Plan at their forthcoming 
meeting on 07 March 2022.  

 
9. TENANCY MANAGEMENT, REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE OF COUNCIL-

OWNED PROPERTIES  
 
Councillor Mrs L E Clubley left the meeting at the start of this item. 
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs T L Ellis addressed the Panel 
on this item.  
 
An addendum was tabled at the meeting to provide revised figures at Table 2: 
Disabled Modifications/Adaptations by Year as provided on page 83 of the 
agenda pack.  
 
The Panel considered a report by the Deputy Chief Executive Officer which 
provided members with information about the housing management and 
maintenance services provided by the Neighbourhood Team and the Repairs 
and Maintenance Team.  
 
Councillor Mrs K K Trott asked that it be put on record that the Council is lucky 
to have such a caring and empathic Housing Team which recognises the 
difficulties that people face and works very hard to achieve excellent results. 
 
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel notes the content of the report.   
 

10. UPDATE ON PROGRESS WITH MAKING COUNCIL-OWNED HOMES 
MORE ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY  
 
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs T L Ellis addressed the Panel 
on this item. 
 
The Panel received a presentation which provided an update on progress 
made in respect of making Council-owned properties more environmentally 
friendly.   A copy of the presentation slides is attached to these minutes as 
Appendix B. 
 
Members thanked officers for a very interesting and informative presentation.  
 
RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Panel notes the content of the report.  
 

Page 8



Housing Scrutiny Panel  3 February 2022 
 

 

11. HOUSING SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES  
 
Members considered and discussed the Scrutiny Priorities for the Panel and 
agreed that an update be provided later in the year to see what progress has 
been made with the Greening Campaign.  
 
RESOLVED that, subject to the addition of the item outlined above, the 
priorities for the Housing Scrutiny Panel be agreed. 
 

(The meeting started at 6.01 pm 
and ended at 7.30 pm). 

 
 

Page 9





  

 
 

Report to 
Housing Scrutiny Panel 

 
 
 
Date 14 July 2022  
 
Report of: Deputy Chief Executive Officer 
 
Subject: EXECUTIVE BUSINESS  
 
 
.   
 

SUMMARY 

One of the key functions of this Scrutiny Panel is to hold the Executive Portfolio Holder and 
Senior Officers to account in the delivery of the service and the Improvement Actions identified 
in the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Corporate Vision.  
 
Members are therefore invited to consider the items of business which fall under the remit of 
the Housing portfolio and have been dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting of the 
Panel. This also includes any decisions taken by individual Executive Members.  
 
The relevant notices for decisions taken are attached for consideration. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that Members consider the items of Business discharged by the Executive 
since the last meeting of the Panel and make any comments or raise any questions for 
clarification.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6





 

 

FAREHAM 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

2021/22 
Decision No. 

2351 
 

Record of Decision by Executive 

Monday, 7 March 2022 

 

Portfolio Housing 

Subject: Draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy - 
Adoption 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

Corporate Priority: Providing housing choices 

 

Purpose: 
To review the consultation results and adopt the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping 
Strategy.  
 
At their meeting on 11 October 2021, the Executive approved the Draft 
Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and Delivery Plan for an eight-week 
period of public consultation.  
 
Public consultation took place between 18 October and 13 December 2021.  There 
are no matters which require any changes to either document as the very valid 
points raised by consultees will be picked up through the Delivery Plan.   
 

 

Options Considered: 
The comments of the Housing Scrutiny Panel were taken into account in considering 
this item. 
 
As recommendation.  
 

 

Decision: 
RESOLVED that the Executive: 
 

(a) notes the feedback received from the public consultation exercise, as detailed 
in Appendix A to the report; and 
 

(b) agrees to adopt the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy and 
Delivery Plan, as included in Appendix B to the report, to formally replace the 
current Homelessness and Housing Options Strategy.  

 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6(1)



 

 

Reason: 
To adopt an up-to-date Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy that will support 
Corporate Priority 1 “Providing Housing Choices”. 
 

 

Confirmed as a true record: 
Councillor SDT Woodward (Executive Leader) 
 
 
 
Monday, 7 March 2022 

 

Page 14



 

 
 

FAREHAM 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

2021/22 
Decision No. 

2352 
 

Record of Decision by Executive 

Monday, 7 March 2022 

 

Portfolio Housing 

Subject: Assheton Court Redevelopment 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

Corporate Priority: Providing housing choices 

 

Purpose: 
To seek approval for the funding arrangements for the redevelopment of Assheton 
Court in Portchester, to provide up to 60 new sheltered housing apartments.  
 
To also seek approval of the process toward the appointment of contractors for the 
scheme.  
 
The report provides Members with an overview of the funding arrangements 
proposed to be used, to enable the redevelopment of Assheton Court in Portchester.  
This to include the demolition of the existing building and a new building comprising 
of up to 60 sheltered housing apartments.  
 
Further details surrounding the funding arrangements, including the total estimated 
cost to deliver the project, are provided in the Confidential Appendix A attached to 
the report.  
 
The report also seeks Executive approval for delegated authority that will allow a 
time efficient appointment of an appropriate contractor to build out the scheme.  
 
 
 

 

Options Considered: 
At the invitation of the Executive Leader, Councillor R H Price, JP addressed the 
Executive on this item.  
 
As recommendation. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6(2)



 

 

Decision: 
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees: 
 

(a) the funding mechanisms, as outlined in the confidential Appendix A attached 
to the report, for the delivery of up to 60 new sheltered housing apartments; 
and  
 

(b) that the award of contract and the appointment of building contractor(s) for the 
Assheton Court redevelopment be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive 
Officer, following consultation with the Executive Member for Housing.  

 

 

Reason: 
To ensure the funding arrangements are acceptable and to enable a time efficient 
process to deliver the scheme if/when a formal planning consent is available for the 
site.  
 

 

Confirmed as a true record: 
Councillor SDT Woodward (Executive Leader) 
 
 
 
Monday, 7 March 2022 

 

Page 16



 

 

 

 

 
 

Presentation to 
Housing Scrutiny Panel  

 
 
 
Date: 14 July 2022  
 
 
Subject: The Role and Functions of the Housing Scrutiny Panel 
 
  
 

SUMMARY 

The Panel will receive a presentation which will provide an overview for new members on the 
role and functions of the Housing Scrutiny Panel. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Housing Panel notes the content of the presentation.   

Page 17

Agenda Item 7





  

 

 
 

Presentation to 
The Housing Scrutiny Panel  

 
 
 
Date: 14 July 2022 
 
Report of:  Head of Housing Delivery   
 
Subject:  Affordable Housing Update 
 
  
 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of the presentation is to inform Members of the Panel of the progress with the 
Fareham Housing sites and other relevant strategic housing matters 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that Members consider the contents of the presentation and make any 
comments or raise any questions for clarification. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8





 

 

 
 

Report to 
Housing Scrutiny Panel 

 
 
 
Date 14 July 2022  
 
Report of: Head of Housing & Benefits 
 
Subject: Homelessness Funding Bids - Update 
 
 
.   
 

SUMMARY 

This report provides the Panel with information about the successful bids for grants 
made by Fareham Borough Council’s Housing Options Team to the government’s 
Rough Sleeping Initiative fund. 

RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Panel consider the contents of this report and make any 
comments or raise any questions for clarification.

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. There is considered to be four forms of homelessness. A person might experience only 
one of these forms, but could encounter some or all of them: 

(a) Statutory homelessness – persons owed the main duty of assistance by a local 
housing authority 

(b) Single homelessness – persons living in supported housing (including hostels, 
refuges and supported lodgings) 

(c) Street homelessness – persons sleeping rough in places not designated for 
habitation 

(d) Hidden homelessness – persons accommodated in insecure arrangements often 
with relatives or friends, but just as often with people not previously known to 
them 

2. Rough sleeping is the most visible form of homelessness. Rough sleepers are one of 
the most vulnerable groups in society and studies have found strong correlations 
between homelessness and a multiplicity, and increased severity, of both physical and 
mental health conditions.   

3. Successive governments have put in place various initiatives to tackle rough sleeping 
but despite considerable efforts, the official national rough sleeper counts showed 
increases every year after new methodology was introduced in autumn 2010 up to the 
autumn 2017 count. The results of the 2017 count were published in January 2018 
and showed a 169% increase in the number of people sleeping rough in England 
since 2010 was recorded. 

ROUGH SLEEPING INITIATIVE 

4. In August 2018, the government published the national Rough Sleeping Strategy 
which outlined how they intended to support local authorities to end rough sleeping by 
2027.  

5. The Rough Sleeping Initiative (RSI), also launched in 2018 is a key part of the Rough 
Sleeping Strategy. It seeks to support people sleeping rough off the streets and 
develop their wellbeing and stability, helping to reduce the number of people rough 
sleeping in both the short and longer term and was originally targeted at local 
authorities with high numbers of people sleeping rough. It was expanded in 2019 
providing the opportunity for all local authorities to bid for funding to support the 
establishment or enhancement of coordinated local support services for rough 
sleepers or those at risk of sleeping rough in their area. 

6. The initiative includes funds allocated directly to local authorities, as well as a 
specialist team of Advisors made up of rough sleeping and homelessness experts 
from local authorities and the third sector. The team also has specialist advisers with 
knowledge in health, care leavers, employment, prisons and probation, and the faith 
sector to ensure a holistic approach to the rough sleeping issue. The team work 
closely with local authorities to help develop capability and deliver interventions to 
tackle rough sleeping. 

7. The grant has been released annually since 2019 and the most up to date research 
estimates the number of rough sleepers is now 43% lower than predictions had RSI 
not been in place. 

Page 22



 

 

8. Fareham Borough Council has maximised each opportunity to bring funding into the 
area and submitted a successful bid each year, in partnership with Gosport Borough 
Council securing £59,850 in 2019, £141,450 in 2020 and £293,813 in 2021. Our bids 
have been produced following significant engagement with service users, specialist 
homelessness service providers, agencies such as the Police and Probation, drug and 
alcohol misuse service providers, and internal departments such as the Community 
Safety Team and Neighbourhood Team.  

9. In each bid, the Council has had to demonstrate how our rough sleeping response 
meets the four objectives set out in the Rough Sleeping Initiative: 

(a) Prevention – Activities to stop people sleeping rough for the first time 

(b) Intervention – Support for those currently sleeping rough to move off the streets 

(c) Recovery – Support for those who have slept rough to ensure they do not return 
to the streets 

(d) Systems Support – Systems and structures to embed change and monitor 
progress 

10. 2019/20 - Following a cut in HCC funding for homelessness services in 2018, FBC 
successfully bid for funding to provide additional Outreach Services in Fareham. 

11. 2020/21 – A successful bid was made to ensure the Outreach service was maintained 
together with two new posts (Complex Needs Navigator and Accommodation 
Procurement Officer) to work across Fareham and Gosport.   

12. 2021/22 – A successful bid was made to ensure the continuation of the existing 
interventions mentioned above, but also included further funding to provide an 
additional Complex Needs Navigator, funds to develop 5 Housing First schemes, a new 
post of Homelessness Prevention & Mediation Officer plus funding for specialised 
support in accommodation for former rough sleepers. 

13. 2022/25 - In November 2021, DLUHC announced that the next funding round would 
be a three-year settlement spanning 2022-25. Our bid set out the interventions needed 
to effectively respond to our current need and detailed how these can be flexible so we 
can shift emphasis over the course of the three-year programme from services 
focusing on emergency accommodation and crisis intervention to services which 
supports individuals to sustain a life away from the streets and preventing people 
rough sleeping for the first time. This supports the Council’s Homelessness & Rough 
Sleeping Strategy commitment to end rough sleeping in the borough. On 19 May 
2022, we received confirmation that our bid had been successful and have been 
awarded an allocation for 2022 to 2025 of £1.08m. 

14. The table below shows a breakdown of the Rough Sleeping Initiative funding secured. 
A summary of each intervention can be seen at Appendix A. 

 Intervention   Funding 
2019-20 

Funding 
2020-21 

Funding 
2021-22 

Funding 
2022-23 

Funding 
2023-24 

Funding 
2024-25 

Outreach and In-reach Services £57,850 £57,850 £65,000 £69,559 £71,324 £73,067 

Personalisation budget  £2,000 £8000 £11,598 £6,000 £6,000 £5,000 

Complex Needs Navigator - £37,300 £71,314 £86,526 £89,458 £45,822 

Recruitment/training costs - £1,000 £2,500 - - - 

Accommodation Procurement Officer - £37,300 £37,300 £37,300 - - 

Homeless Prevention & Mediation Officer - - £30,105 £40,666 £41,249 £41,661 

East Street (FBC only) - - £14,833 £34,898 £35,583 £36,658 

Page 23



 

 

Housing First - - £46,163 £80,821 £67,094 £45,822 

Flexible Surge Accommodation funding - - £15,000 £10,000 £8,000 £6,000 

Mental Health Outreach - - - £32,930 £49,400 - 

Acton Lodge - - - - £33,000 £33,000 

Total £59,850 £141,450 £293,813 £398,700 £401,108 £287,030 

 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

15. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report 

CONCLUSION 

16. These additional resources and specialist support have undoubtedly improved the 
options available to rough sleepers in the Borough. In 2018, there was an average of 
19 individuals sleeping rough on a typical night across Fareham, this number is now 
consistently between 2 and 5.  Those currently sleeping rough are all known to the 
Housing Options service and have been made offers of accommodation on many 
occasions.  They are maintaining various levels of engagement with the Outreach 
services and work will continue to bring them in off the streets, aide their recovery, 
rebuild their lives and prevent them from returning to rough sleeping.  

17. The previous fragmented, short-term and resource-intensive competitive nature of the 
funding made long-term and sustainable homelessness provision difficult therefore we 
welcome the multi-year funding programme as it gives us certainty of funding for rough 
sleeper services over the next three years. It enables us to build on the progress of 
recent years and to move increasingly from a focus on intervention to one which 
supports long-term recovery and prevents rough sleeping. 

 

Appendices: A – Rough Sleeping Initiative funded initiatives 

 

Background Papers: 

None 

 
Reference Papers:  

DLUHC Rough Sleeping Strategy 2018  
 
Enquiries: 

For further information on this report please contact Caroline Newman (Ext 4645) 
 

  

Page 24



 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

Intervention name Service Description 

Complex Needs 
Navigator  
 

These cross-borough roles provide intensive, individually tailored support to our most difficult to reach homeless clients and ensures they have 
access to health, accommodation and other specialist support. These clients often have complex and challenging histories which have previously led 
to difficulties in them accessing and sustaining accommodation. This role enables the gradual building of trust with the client group, which is required 
to break down barriers and remove some of the more entrenched impediments to engagement. In turn, clients feel able to take up offers of 
accommodation and other interventions to help them sustain this in the long-term. During 2021/22, the Complex Needs Navigators have managed 39 
such cases, just over half of which were rough sleeping at the time of referral and has helped all but 4 of these individuals move off the streets. 
 

Personalisation 
budget for 
Complex Needs 
Navigators 
 

Funding a range of activities such as travel costs to view accommodation, goods and equipment to enable take up of accommodation, and unlocking 
other barriers to accommodation, such as the provision of enhanced financial or other support offers to private landlords.  

Outreach/In-reach 
service 

The cross-borough Outreach/In-reach Service is currently funded via two separate streams – 1.5FTE posts funded by HCC which is shared across 
both boroughs and 1.6FTE posts funded by RSI. With this larger team, we have successfully matched different workers to each individual which has 
improved engagement and provided intensive support when people move into accommodation. The increased Outreach/In-Reach Service has 
improved information about, and engagement with, rough sleepers, and has had a positive effect on the public's perception of the availability of 
support. Throughout the pandemic and in response to the government’s 'Everyone In' initiative, we saw an increase of approximately a third across 
both services. Although there have been particular pressure points during this time, the overall trend is an increasing proportion of in-reach cases. 
Outreach remains important, as a recent spike in rough sleeper numbers, reflected across the county, demonstrated that the work of the Outreach 
team was vital in bringing these numbers down again quickly.  We recognise that the provision of accommodation is only the first step to long-term 
recovery so, as other interventions progress, it is envisaged that the Outreach service will gradually transform and refocus to supporting those in 
accommodation and preventing any return to the streets. 
 

Homelessness 
Prevention & 
Mediation Officer  

Both Local Authority areas have reported a higher-than-average number of prevention and relief duties owed to individuals whose family or friends 
are no longer willing or able to accommodate them. This cohort of whom c.35% are under the age of 24, are at significant risk of rough sleeping 
unless dedicated prevention work is undertaken, specifically tailored to the individual and their circumstances. An average of 8 individuals are at risk 
of sleeping rough each month as they have been asked to leave their accommodation by family or friends. Our qualified Mediator provides an 
enhanced homelessness prevention service to young individuals who are at specific risk of rough sleeping as opposed to the broader work of the 
Housing Options teams. Additionally, the post holder focuses on upstream homelessness prevention work to avoid individuals reaching crisis and 
thereby reduce the demand for emergency responses. Since embedding this cross-boundary post in October 2021, 15 individuals have been able to 
remain at home following intensive mediation. A further 7 individuals have been able to remain temporarily at home whilst alternative accommodation 
is sought. 2 individuals have moved into settled alternative accommodation. A further 12 cases are currently ongoing. 
 

Housing First   Housing First supports individuals who have multiple complex needs with a history of entrenched/repeat rough sleeping, enabling them to live in their 
own homes. This model has shown that the provision of a secure home provides the platform from which other issues can be addressed rather than 
the individual having to ‘earn’ housing.  The funding has enabled both Authorities to bring 10 individuals, who had a demonstrable need for intensive 

P
age 25



 

 

support, into the Housing First programme. All units of accommodation are provided from our own housing stocks and support provided by Two 
Saints. Whilst we acknowledge that the cost of Housing First reduces over time as people require less support, there is a need to continue the 
programme for these individuals into a second and third year. The gradual reduction in support needs over this time will enable the programme to be 
flexible, allowing new cases to brought in and to respond if someone who has been using the service for some time requires an increase in support. 
Due to the long-term nature of these placements and the complexity of the individuals accommodated, funding is required for the life of the 
programme to ensure they do not return to the streets. 
 

East Street (FBC 
only)  
 

Following successful bids to the Next Steps Accommodation Programme and Rough Sleeping Initiative, together with FBC financial contributions, 
FBC secured an additional 6 supported units of accommodation for former rough sleepers. This facility has provided us with additional capacity within 
our rough sleeper accommodation pathway and has given secure, supported accommodation to entrenched rough sleepers throughout the pandemic. 
These additional units ensure people sleeping rough have accommodation whilst their wider needs are addressed. This housing-led provision allows 
us to meet the needs of people sleeping rough more flexibly by increasing their choice and control over the options available to them locally. 
 

Acton Lodge  
 

These 10 units of supported accommodation provides vital cross-boundary capacity within our move-on pathways, providing increased options for 
those with lower-level support needs or who would not manage in the higher intensity, higher support hostels. The support provided is geared more 
toward putting in place the skills needed to achieve fully independent living, however, the County Council are withdrawing funding for this scheme 
from 1 April 2023. The Rough Sleeping Initiative funding from 1 April 2023 safeguards the continuity of this scheme.  
 

Mental Health 
Outreach  

In recent years, we have seen a steady increase in the number of individuals with identified or suspected mental health issues approaching our 
homelessness services (50% of clients in last 12 months) and they demand a disproportionate amount of time from Outreach and related services. 
Listening to those with lived experiences of rough sleeping has shown us that we need to bring mental health services to them rather than expecting 
them to engage with services themselves.  From Autumn 2022, we will embed a specialist mental health navigator into the team to better meet the 
needs of our rough sleeper population, reach those we know are missing and enable wide-ranging and tailored support to all. We have achieved 
commitment from the NHS to second a mental health practitioner into a 20-month pilot scheme which will provide targeted and intensive mental 
health interventions in the community. Their work will be directed to those who are, or at risk of rough sleeping. They will provide mental health 
support, undertake assessments and deal with mental health deterioration or crisis. We believe this pilot will show our colleagues in the NHS that 
such a post is a vital role to be subsumed into their structures at the end of the pilot. 
 

Accommodation 
Procurement 
Officer 

Unfortunately, the success of this role has continued to be hindered by the pandemic, however, the post holder has developed a Guarantor Scheme 
which has helped clients access privately rented accommodation and has built positive relationships with landlords and local letting agents. 
Successful applications have been made to the Rent Guarantee Scheme, individuals have been assisted with Rent in Advance sums and additional 
properties have been added to our stock of managed-leased accommodation for rough sleepers and those at risk of rough sleeping. The private 
rented sector provides a further choice in accommodation for former rough sleepers. By increasing the number of landlords willing to work with us, 
move on opportunities for those already in our rough sleeper pathway will be maximised and free up units of supported accommodation. 
 

Flexible Surge 
Accommodation 
Funding 
 

Provision of emergency accommodation to respond to seasonal demands, including winter and other surge provision. 

 

P
age 26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Executive Business
	6(1) Draft Homelessness & Rough Sleeping Strategy - Adoption
	6(2) Assheton Court Redevelopment
	7 Roles and Functions of the Housing Scrutiny Panel
	8 Affordable Housing Update
	9 Homelessness Funding Bids - Update

